
MINUTES
SENATE JUDICIARY & RULES COMMITTEE

DATE: Wednesday, January 15, 2025
TIME: 1:30 P.M.
PLACE: Room WW54
MEMBERS
PRESENT:

Chairman Lakey, Vice Chairman Shippy, Senators Ricks, Foreman, Lent,
Lenney, Keyser, Wintrow, and Ruchti

ABSENT/
EXCUSED:

None

NOTE: The sign-in sheet, testimonies and other related materials will be retained with
the minutes in the committee's office until the end of the session and will then be
located on file with the minutes in the Legislative Services Library.

CONVENED: Chairman Lakey called the Senate Judiciary and Rules Committee (Committee)
to order at 1:30 p.m.

GUBERNATORIAL
APPOINTMENT
VOTE:

Senator Wintrow moved to send the Gubernatorial Appointment of Kirk Nelson
to serve on the Sexual Offender Management Board (SOMB) to the floor with a
recommendation that he be confirmed by the Senate. Senator Ricks seconded
the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

GUBERNATORIAL
APPOINTMENT:

Committee Consideration of the Gubernatorial Appointment of Ashley
Dowell of Nampa, Idaho, as Director of the Department of Juvenile
Corrections, to serve a term commencing June 9, 2024. Ms. Dowell stated
she was very excited to serve in that capacity. She explained her experience
included six years in the criminal justice field, first with the Department of
Corrections in the Prisons Division, then moved to the Executive Director of
Pardons and Parole, and was assigned as Director of the Department of Juvenile
Corrections in June of 2024.
Senator Wintrow asked Director Dowell to share her philosophy in Juvenile
Corrections, and what her vision and direction for the department would be
under her leadership. Ms. Dowell responded that her background was in mental
health, and she was a licensed therapist. One of her focus points was to address
mental health issues and trauma in the kids who were currently in custody. She
indicated a concern about the level of mental acuity of some of the youth in their
custody. Ms. Dowell said her top priority would be to address the mental health
of the youth in custody and work toward diverting the children from ever being in
a correctional setting in the first place. She also saw a need for public safety
working to address some of the criminogenic needs of the kids, and work to
make sure they can be released into the community safely.
Ms. Dowell explained how a successful program devised by former Director
Prow for deinstitutionalization of kids with status offenses, such as truency or low
level offenses, had been. He did a remarkable job of bringing that number down.
Another one of Ms. Dowell's focus points was to bring the census back down.
She attributed the increase in part to the number of children with unmet mental
health needs. Recidivism has also increased in the last year. Ms. Dowell and her
staff would work with all stakeholders involved to see how gaps would be filled.
Chairman Lakey inquired about the general appearance of the facilities she had
visited. Ms. Dowell responded that they were clean and well-kept. It appeared
that the staffs were taking good care of the facilities and the youth who were
in their custody.



GUBERNATORIAL
APPOINTMENT:

Committee Consideration of the Gubernatorial Appointment of Cory Barrier
of Boise, Idaho, to the Sexual Offender Management Board, to serve a
term commencing March 14, 2024 and expiring January 1, 2027. Mr. Barrier
explained he had been with the Department of Corrections for about 18 years.
He started out as a probation and parole officer in Boise District 4 for eight years,
transitioned to the training division where he was involved in training all new
employees in the organization. He returned to the field about 6 years later as
a deputy district manager in Caldwell District 3, and was promoted to district
manager. After serving there for five years, he was promoted to Deputy Chief
of the Department of Pardons and Parole. Mr. Barrier added he was anxious
to do whatever possible to enhance public safety. He was interested in using
evidence based practices, and in evaluating how they were being delivered to
those clients to give them their best chance for success.

DISCUSSION: Chairman Lakey asked what the difference was in sex offenders and other
offenders. Mr. Barrier responded that he approached sex offenders in the same
manner he did any offender. He worked with the behavior that caused them to
make those choices. He also worked with people who could provide the types
of services the sex offenders required. Senator Wintrow questioned what Mr.
Barrier saw that had made a big difference in their lives. Mr. Barrier said the
staff had a lot of tools and training provided for them. He had seen that moving
away from having someone just comply with the rules did not necessarily make
them successful. He stated people needed to have their basic needs met.
Starting out by meeting those basic needs, and then taking small steps toward
improvement. Mr. Barrier added people needed to feel connected and that
someone was invested in their success. Senator Ricks asked how the new role
Mr. Barrier was appointed to affected his primary job. Mr. Barrier explained his
primary job was full time and covered all seven probation and parole districts
in the State. He said if he could focus on one thing, it would be to create ways
to make the connections he previously discussed.

GUBERNATORIAL
APPOINTMENT:

Committee Consideration of the Gubernatorial Appointment of Luke Malek
of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho, to the State Board of Corrections, to serve a term
commencing January 30, 2025, and expiring January 30, 2031. Mr. Malek
introduced himself and stated he was from North Idaho. He received his
undergraduate degree at the College of Idaho, and graduated from law school
from the University of Idaho. He served 6 years as a representative in the Idaho
House of Representatives. Mr. Malek added he was a former prosecutor and
now owned his own legal practice with locations in Boise, Portland, Spokane and
Kennewick. Their firm focused on health care law, litigation and transactional
law. He had stayed very active in law enforcement. Mr. Malek stated his passion
in making Idaho safe and the best that it could be was what interested him in
taking this appointment. The Board of Corrections played a major roll in that. He
was committed to making sure when people were no longer incarcerated, they
were coming out of incarceration prepared to be better members of society.
Senator Wintrow asked what challenges or issues Mr. Malek might want to
focus on while he was serving on the Department of Corrections Board. Mr.
Malek said the most important thing was to have the right motivation for being
there. The constitutional rights of those involved must come first, then the
statutory duties must be fulfilled. All agencies and interests needed to work
together to make Idaho as safe as possible.

PASSED THE
GAVEL:

Chairman Lakey passed the gavel to Vice Chairman Shippy for rules review.

SENATE JUDICIARY & RULES COMMITTEE
Wednesday, January 15, 2025—Minutes—Page 2



DOCKET NO:
11-1101-2401

Rules of the Idaho Peace Officer Standards and Training Council. Brad
Johnson, Administrator, POST, Idaho State Police, stated this legislation was
the adoption of a pending rule. This was a proposed rule to adopt the temporary
rule which was in effect in July 2024. Officer Johnson explained the only
change was the addition of two commas which were unintentionally not included
in the final copy adopted by the Legislature, but were originally intended and
approved by the Post Council. There were no changes to the pending rule
and it was being adopted as originally proposed. The lack of the two commas
significantly changed that section and it was not what was intended.
Senator Wintrow asked if anything substantially changed with the omission of
the two commas. Officer Johnson stated that in the absence of the commas, it
eliminated simple marijuana use as a disqualifier. That was not the intention.

MOTION: Senator Wintrow moved to accept Docket No. 11-1101-2401. Chairman
Lakey seconded the motion. The motion carried by voice vote.

PASSED THE
GAVEL:

Vice Chairman Shippy passed the gavel back to Chairman Lakey.

ADJOURNED: There being no further business at this time, Chairman Lakey adjourned the
meeting at 1:55 p.m.

___________________________ ___________________________
Senator Lakey Sharon Pennington
Chair Secretary

SENATE JUDICIARY & RULES COMMITTEE
Wednesday, January 15, 2025—Minutes—Page 3


